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BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPORT

The Board ofDirectors have the pleasure in submitting their report and the audited consolidated financial statements of Fujair&h

Cement Industries P,J.S.C (,.Company") and its subsidiary (together referred to as the acroup) for the year ended

3l December 2022. These consolidated financial statements are prepared by management. Management has taken responsibility

for the prcparation and fair presentation ofthese consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Intemational Financial

Reporting Standards (lFRSs) and the applicable provision ofUAE Federal Law No. 32 of202l on Commercial Companies and

the Anicles of Association ofthe Company and the Board ofDirectors have given clearance for issuance ofthese consolidated

financial statements on 9 March 2023

Incotporqtion

Fujairah Cement Industries PJ.S.C - Fujaireh is a publicjoint stock company incorporated in the Emirate of Fujairah by

an Amiri Decree issued by His Highness The Ruler ofFujairah on 20 December 1979. The Company's ordinary shares are

listed on the Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange and Boursa Kuwait (Kuwait Stock Exchange). In the Annual General Meeting

hetd on 3l March 2022, the shareholders approved the delisting ofthe Company's shares from Kuwait Stock Exchange

(Boursa Kuwait). Thc last day oftrading ofthe Company's shares in Boursa Kuwait was on 30 November 2022.

The Company is domiciled in Fujairah and its registered address is P.O. Box : 600, Fujairah - United Arab Emirates.

Principd activities

Thc main activities ofCompany and its subsidiary (collcctively referred !o as the "Group") are clinkers and hydraulic cement

manufacturers and ready mixed concrete manufacturing

Financiol results

Total revenue of the Group for the year amounred to AED 374,57'1,222 (2021: AED 419,977,908) and the Group incuned a

loss ofAED 143,847,098. (2021: AED. 102,738,529).

Going Concern

The Board of Directors has made an assessment of the Group's ability to continue as a going concem and is satjsfied that

the Group has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future, so they continue to adopl the going concem

basis in preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3l December 2O22'

Transsctions with relaled ponies

The consolidated financial statements disclose related parties hansactions and balances . AII transactions are carried out as

part ofour normal course ofbusiness and in compliance with applicable laws and regulations

Board of Directors

Chairman
Vice -Chairman
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

Auditots

The consolidared financial statements for the year ended 3l December 2O22 werc sudited by Talal Abu-Ghazaleh & Co

Intemational - Fujairah and they have indicated their willingness to continue as the auditor of the Group for the year 2023

A resolution proposing their re-appointment will be put at the annual general meeting.

Mohammed Bin Hamad Bin Saif Al Sharqi

Mohamed Ghaith Khalfan Al Mohairbi
Abdul Ghafour Hashem Abdul Ghafour Bahroozian
Saad Abdullah Al Hanian
Fahad Ahmed Abdulla Alshaaer
Saeed Mobaral Obaid Ahmed Alzahmi
Mohamed Sharief Habib Mohamed Rafiee Alawadhi
Abdoullateef Saad Abdollateef Aldosari
Walid Abdalaziz Fakieh
Mohammad Saeed Aldowaisan
The Public Institution for Social Security Kuwait State

On behalf of the Board of Directo

Mohmmed
(Chairman

Bin Saif Al Sharqi
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Independent Auditor's R€pora to the Shareholders of
Fujairsb CcmeDt Industrie.s P'J.S'C
Fujairsh - Unlted Arrb Emirstcs

Report on thc Audit of the Consolldeted Flncncisl Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Fujeirsh Cement Industries ?.J.S.C

G,".to,1p"oy") end lts subsidiary (the "Group"), which comprise the consolidated statement of fmancial

iorition ".'"t 
it 'pecember 

2022, cons;tdated staiement of comprehensive income, consolidate.d statement of
it *g"s in 

"quity "nd 
consolidatei statemenl of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the consolidaGd

frnaniial statemints including a summary ofsignificant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated furaDcial statements presetrt fairly, in all material resp€cts, the

"or""fialt.a 
i,it-"ial posiiion oithe Croup as at 3l December 2022, and its consolidated financial performance

and its consolidated cish flows for the yiar then ended in accordance with tntemational Financial Reporting

Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (ISAS).

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described n the Auditor's Responsibililies for ,he Audil of
the consolidated Financiol slatemenls seclion of oul rePort. we are independent of the Group in accordance

with the ,lntemational Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants

iii-dSA C"a"j iogether with the other ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Group's

consolidated i.-iial .tut"-ents in the United Arab Emirates and we have fulfilled our other ethical

iesponsibiliries in accordance with these requirements. we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Materiq! Llncerlointy Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 3.1 to the cotrsolidated financial statemenls which states that the Group incurred loss

of AiD 143,847,098 for the current year compared to loss of AED 102,'138,529 in the previous year and the

accumulated losses as at 3l December 2022 amounted lo AED 87,523,797 which was offset against voluntary

i.."r"" 
"r "t 

:r December 2022. The current liabilities exceeded the current assets by AED 145,009,363 These

"u"nt - "onaitioos, 
along with other matters as set forth in Note 3.1, indicate that a mat€rial unceltahty exists

ii"i,,"V 
".* 

rigriniant d-oubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concem. Our opinion is not modified

in respect of this matter.

Enphosis of Matto

We draw attention to Note 14 that states that the Group's Board of Directors resolYed to offset the losses and/or

tt 
" 

a".utnrtut"a Urses against voluntary reserve as at 3 I December 2022. Our opinion is not modified in resPect

of this matter.

Key audit matlers

Key audit ma0els are rhose matters thal, in our professional judgment, wcr€ of most signihcance in our audit of

thJconsolidated fmancial statements of tlre cunent period. Theie manen were addressed on the context of our

"rait 
oiif," consolidated fnancial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, and- we do not

pr*iO" o rap*ot" opinion on these matters. ln addition to the matter described in "Material lJncerlain y Related

ii-Cii^g C6r";" section, we have detennined the mrtt€r described below to be the key audit matters to be

communicated in our rePort.

AI Awadhi Tower, 5'i floor, olfice No, 506
Hamad Bin Abdullah Street
Tef: +971 9 2229978
Fax: +971 9 2371394
P.O. Box 1490 - Fujairah
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The Group's property, plant and equipment included plant and machinery which are disclosed in Note (5) in
these consolidatcd financial statements, with carying value of AED. 955,209,516 representing 85% of total
property, plant ard equipment and 62% of total assets. The Group's management has hired an extemal valuer to
estimate tbe re.overable amount based on fair value (dcrived through the Depreciated Replac.ment Cost (DRC)
method by desktop exercise and no asset reinspection) less cost of disposal and the manag,ement has concluded
that the fair value ofplant and machinery is higher than is carrying value so that no impairment provision was

required for the year ended 3l Decemb€r 2022.

hdeprndcnt A[dllor's Rcport to the Shrreholdcrs of
Frjoirrh Cemctrt Industries P.J.S.C (Continucd)

Key aud maaers (Continued)

lmpairment ofprope y, plont and equip ent

We performed the following audit procedures :

o Evaluated the objectivity, independence and expenise of the extemal valuation expert appointed by the

managem€nt in valuation of plant and machinery.
. Evaluated the appropriatcness of the underlying assumptions and the methodology used by the valuer and

market practice.
. Assessed the adequacy and completeness of the disclosures presented in these consolidated financial

statements

Invenlo es

The verification ofGroup's stock of raw materials, semi-furished products, buming media and finished products

as at 3l December 2022 representing 16% of total assets and require an independent surveyor to make estimate
of the quantities by using certain systematic measurementVcalculations. The arcas of focus are whether the
quantities reponed by the surveyor are as per physical stock held by tbe Group as at 3l December 2022 and

valuation of inv€otories (including spare parts) at lower of cost or nel realizable value as assessing net realizable
value is an area of significant judpent.

We performed the following audit procedwes :

o Reviewed the background and experience ofthe surveyor.
o Corroborated dre results of the sureyor repon to the invcntory movement.
o Verified the physical existence of inv€ntory on sample basis.

. Tested the valuation of inventory including revicw of judpents and assumptions considered regarding

obsolescence and net realizable value.

Other inlornaion

Management is responsible for the other information. Othcr information consisrc of the information included in
the Group's Board of Directors Report of 2022, othcr than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor's repoi ther€on. We obtained the repon of the Group's Board of Directors, at th€ date of our auditor's
report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated fmancial statements, our responsibility is to r€ad the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other infonnation is materially inconsistent
with th€ consolidated financial stateme s or our knowledge obtained in the audit" or otherwise appea$ to be

materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatemeat
ofthis other information; we are required to repon that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Resporcibilities of Managenenl and those chsged wilh governance lor the Cotsolidated linoncial statenents

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), and applicable provisions ofUAE Fedeml
Law No. 32 of 2021 and the Articles of Association of the Company and for such intemal control as

management detEmines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated flrnancial stat€m€nls that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fi-aud or error.



Iodcpcrdcnl Auditor's Rcport to tbc Shrrcholdcrs of
Fujrlrrh CcDctrt Itrdustrlas PJ.S.C (Contiaucd)

Respottsibililies of Motogenent and ,hose choqed vith goverr@rre lor tlc Consolifuted fnotriol statemenls

(Corrlinued)

ln preparing the consolidated finsncial stat€ments, managemcnt is responsible for assessing the Group's ability !o
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related io going conc€m and using the going

conccm basis of accounting rmlcss managuncnt eithcr intends to liquidate the Group or to cs{se operations, or
has no realistic altemative but to do so.

Thos€ charged with governanct are resporsible for overseeing the Group's financial rcpoding proc€ss.

Auditor's Resporsibililies lot tle Audi, olltp Corrsoliddedlnaicial slatemenls

Our objectives are to obtain rcasonable assurance about whcther the consolidat€d linancial statements as a whol€
are fre€ from mai€rial misststement, whe6er due to fiaud or €f10r, and to issue auditor's repofl that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high levcl of assurance, but is not a guarante€ thst an audit conduct€d in
accordance with lSAs will always detect a matcrial misslatement when it cxists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considcrcd material if, individually or in aggregate, thcy could re€sonably be expected !o
influenc€ the ec.onomic d€cisions ofus€rs taken on the basis ofthese clnsolidated financial statemenls

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAS, we exercise profcssional judgment and maintain profcssional

skepticism throughout the 8udit. We also:

Idcntit and sssess the risks of mat€rial misstatcrnent of the consolid8tcd linancial statcmcnts, whether due to
fiaud or cnor, design and pcrform audit procadures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidcnc€ that
is su{Iicient and appropdate io provide a basis of our opinion. The risk of not dctecting a matcriEl
misstat€m€nt resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the overrid€ of int€mal conkol.

Obtsin aD understanding of internal contsol relevant to the audit in order to design audit pocedures that are

appropriate in the circumstanccs, but not for the purpose of exprassing an opinion on thc effectiveness of the
Group's intemal canuol.

Evaluate thc appropriateness of accounting policies used and thc reasonableness of accounting estimatcs and

related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropristcness of management's use of the going conc€m basis of scaounting an4 bas€d on
the audit evidenc€ obtaine4 whether a matcrial uncrrlainty exists r€lated to cvents or conditioE that may
cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continu€ as a going mnctrn. lf we conclude that a maErial
unctrtainty exists, we are required to drsw attention in suditor's report !o thc related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statcments or, if such disclosues ar€ inadequate, to modiry our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evid€nc€ obtained up !o the date of auditor's report. Holv€ver, friture
events or conditions may cause the Group to c€€se to mlttinuc as a going concem.

Evaluate the overall presentation, suucture 8nd content of the consolidated financial ststcmenls, including thc
disclosures, and whether the coNolidaled lirlancisl statemcrlb represent the underlying hanssctions and

events in a manner that achieves fair prcsentation.

. Obtain sulfrcient approFiate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business

activities within thc Group to cxpress an opinion on the consolidated financial statemcnts. We 8re responsible
for the direction, supervision and performancc ofthe Group audit. We remain solcly responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with govcmanc€ regnrding, among other mattcrs, the planned scope and

timing of rhe audit and significart audit findings, including any significflt deficiencies in intemal control that we
idcnti$ driring our audit.

Wc also provide those chargcd with govemance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical

requirements regarding indepcndenc., and !o communicate with them all rclationships and other matt€rs that may
reasonably bc thought to be3l on our indepcndencc, and where applicable, rclated safeguards.

',1



Indcpcodcot Auditor's Rcport to thc Shrrcboldcrs of
FuJ.lrrh CcmGDt Industrlcs PJ.S.C (Cotrtirucd)

Auditor's Resporsibilities for tle Audit ol tlp Consoliddedtinancial slotements (Con int&d)

From fie matters communicatcd with those charged with govemance, wc detqmine those matlcrs that w€re of
most significrnc€ in the audit of the consolidsted financial statcrncnts of lhe curent period and are therefore the

key audit mauen. Wc describe thes€ matteE in our auditor's r€port unless law or regulation precludes public

disclosure about the matter should not be communicaled in our report b€{ause the adv€rse cons€quences of doing

so would reasonably b€ expected to outwcigh the prblic interest bcnefits of such communicalion.

Report on Othcr Lcgrl rnd Rcgulrtory RcquircmcDts

As requirci by UAE Fed€r8l Lsw No. 32 of 202 I we rcport that:

t, We have obtained all the information and explanation we cansid€red necessary for our audit.

2. The consolidated financial statements are prepared and comply, in all matcrial resp€ct with the applicable
pmvisions ofUAE Fedcnl t wNo.32of202l.

3 , The Group has maintained proper books of ac4ount.

4. The financial information of thc Board of Dircrtors repon arc in agrerment with the books of ac.ount ard
records of the Group.

5. As disclos€d in nore I to the consolidated financial stat€ments, the Group has not Purchased or invcsted in any

shares during the year qrdcd 3l December 2022.

6. Transactions and terms with relared parties are disclosed in Note 19.

?. The Social Cootdbutions madc during the year arc disclosed in Note 24.

E. Based on the information and explan8tion that has been made available to us nothing came to our attention

which causes us !o beli€vc that lhe Group has clntravened during the fin8ncial ycar Gnded 3l De:r,arrl;r,t 2022

any of the applicable provisions of UAE Federal taw No. 32 of 2O2l or the Articles of Association of the

Company which woulJ have a material affert on thc Group's activities or on its tinancial position for the year.

TALAL ABU.GHAZALEH & CO. INTERNATIONAL

tiM
sed Auditor No. I130

9 March 2023

-
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Fu.lllneu CTUENT INDUSTRTES P.J.S.C
CoNSoLIDATED STATEMENT oF FINANCIAL poslrloN
As lr 31 DECEMBER 2022 EXHIBIT A

Assirr.s
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right of use assets

Intangible assets

Total Non-Current Assets

Current Assets
Inventories
Trade receivables
Advances and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Totel Curr€nt Assets

ToTAL ASSETS

SHAREHoLDERS' EeutrY AND LIABILtrtEs
Shareholders' Equity
Share capital
Statutory reserve
Voluntary resewe
Revaluation reserYe

Retained eamings

Totsl Shareholders' Equity - Exhibit C

Non-Current Liabilities
Employees' end ofservice benefits
Lease liabilities
Bank borrowings
Trade and other payables

Total Non-Current Liabilities

Current Liobilities
Trade and other payables

Lease liabilities
Bank borrowings

Note

5

6
,7

8

9

t0
ll

t2
13

t4
5

l5
l6
t7
l8

l8
16
t'7

2022
AED

1,122,192,578
99,778,553

210,722

2021
AED

I,t69,626,1l9
t09 ,645 ,4'7 5

1,222,181,853 1,2'79,271,594

252,179,167
60,9t3J0t

t,166,430
1,323,554

287,044,698
94jU,374

8,5'14,346
'123,106

322,652,4s9 390,U6,s24

1,544,a34,312 1,669,918,118

355,E65,320
161,750,412
135,012,205
34,747,500

355,865,320
16t,7 50,4t2
222,536,002

34,',74'.7,500

56,323,301

6t7,315,437 831,222,535

13,081,321
112,705,265
234,0!8,621

29,971,U6

t4,298,r r r

130,202,549
22'7,643,E7 |

t5,270,3 t2

389,797,053 387,414,843

r0E,849,022
28,849,614

329,963,126

t32,512,63E
r3,039,784

305,728,318

Total Current Liabilities 467,661,822 451,280,740

T0TAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1.544.834312 1,669,918,118

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN

INTEGRAL PART OF THESf,, CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the best of our knowledge, the financial information included in these consolidated financial statements

fairly prcsents in all material respects the financial condition, result of operation and cash flows of the Group

as of, and for, the periods presented therein.

These consolidated financial statemen$ were approved for issue by the Board of Drre on 9 March 2023

and signed on their behalfby:

em Naser Khammas
(General Manager)

M

n)

Hamad Bo

-6-
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FUJATRAH CElvrnnr IxousrRtES P.J.S.C
CoNSoLTDATED STATEMENT oF CoMPREHENSIVE INcoME FoR THE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 ExHrBrr B

Note

22

23
24

9(c)
8(b)
8(c)
25
26

27 (0.404) (0.28e)

2022
AED

374,577,222
(423,076,241)

2021
AED

419,977,908
(410,6s8,137)

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross (loss)/profit

Selling and distribution expenses
General and administrative expenses
Provision for impairment loss of trade receivables
Allowance for slow moving spare parts
Write-down of inventories to net realizable value
Factory costs during stoppage

Other income

Total comprehensive loss for the year- Exhibit C

Basic loss per share

Mo
S harqi

Hamad Board

(48,499,025) 9,119,'771

(12,103,939)
(12,153,679)
(11,212,052\

(6,114,492)
(18,275,313)

(9,460,660)
4,054,947

(s3,s77,550)
(r4,279,639)
( 15,095,491 )

(5,568,397)

1,651,339

Operating loss
Finance cost - bank borrowings
Finance cost - lease liabilities

Loss for the year - Exhibit D

Other comprehensive income :

Items that will nol be reclassiJied subsequently to proJit or loss

Surplus on land revaluation

(143,E47,098) (102,738,529)

34,74'.7,500

(143,847,098) (67,991,029)

(113,764,213\
(25,945,522)
(4,137363)

(77 ,s49,96'7)
(20,729,s93)

(4,4s8,969)

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN

INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e Naser Khammas
(General Manager)

l[nan)

-7-
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FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 3l DECEMBER 2022 EXHIBIT D

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss for the year - Exhibit B

Adjustments for:
Depreciation ofproperty, plant and equiPment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Amortization of intangible assets

Employees end of service benefits
Provision for impairment loss oftrade receivables
Allowance for slow moving spare parts

Write-down of inventories to net realizable value

Finance cost - lease liabilities
Finance cost - bank borrowings

Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and liabilities
Decrease/(increase) in inventories
Decrease in trade receivables
Decrease/(increase) in advances and other receivables
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables

Settlements of employees end of service benefits

N€t Cash Provided by Operating Activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Addition of property, plant and equipment

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCINC ACTIVITIES

Repayment of lease liabilities
Proceeds from bank-term borrowings
Repayments of bank-term borrowings
Proceeds from other bank borrowings, net
Finance cost paid on bank borrowings

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ofyear

Cash and cash equivalents at end ofyear - Note 11

(143,847,098) (102,738,s29)

2022
AED

56,211,897
10,182,875

38,795
1,379,860

tr,212,052
6,114,492

18,275,313
4,137,363

25,945,,522

(r0,348,929)
8,659,127

22,109,014
407,916

(9,3s4,2E8)
(2,s96,6s0)

600,448
723,106

1,323,554

2021
AED

54,177,829
t0,27 4,135

I,t 14,706
15,095,491

5,568,397
4,458,969

20,729,593

8,680,591
( 10,037,619)

65,159,922
(2,637,482)

5,266,631
(t ,t 5'7 ,732)

(89,26s,769)
7'1,393,310

(20,7s2,334)

(s33,4s2)
1,256,558

723,106

8,876,190 65,27 4,311

(7,211,274) (2'1,068,12s)

(7 ,211,27 4) (27 ,068 ,tzs)

(6,140,710)
44,009,878

(27,7s6,775)
14,376,455

(2s,ss3,316)

(6,1 14,84s)

(1,064,468) (38,739,638)

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN

INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FUJATRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
NorEs ro rHE CoNSoLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FoR THE

YEAR ENDED 3I DECEMBER 2022

I. STATUS AND ACTIVITIES

2. NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS, INTERPRETATION AND AMENDMENTS

Fujairah Cement Industries P.J.S.C - Fujairah (hereafter referred to as the

"Company") is a publicjoint stock company incorporated in the Emirate of Fujairah by an

Amiri 
'Deiree 

issued by His Highness the Ruler of Fujairah on 20 December 1979. The

company's ordinary shares are listed on the Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange and Boursa

Kuwiit (Kuwait Stock Exchange). In the Annual General Meeting held on 3l March 2022,

the shareholders approved the delisting of the company's shares from Kuwait Stock

Exchange (Boursa Kuwait). The last day of trading of the Company's shares in Boursa

Kuwait was on 30 November 2022.

The main activities of company and irs subsidiary (collectively referred to as the

"Group") are clinkers and hydraulic cement manufacturers and ready mixed concrete

manufacturing.

The Company is domiciled in Fujairah and its registered address is P O Box :

600, Fujairah - United Arab Emirates.

The Group has not purchased or invested in any shares during the year ended 3l December

2022 and 2021 .

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of consolidated financial statements are

consistent with those applied by the Group in the interpretation of the consolidated financial

statements for the year inded 3l December 2021 except for the adoption of the following new

standards, interpretation and amendments.

2.1 Standards, interpretations issued and effective for the current year

The Group has adopted all the applicable new and revised standards and interpretations issued by

the lnternational Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the lnternational Financial Reporting

Interpretations Committee (lFRlC) ofthe IASB that are relevant to its operations and effective for

the year beginning ot I Jantary 2022.

. Proceeds before inlended use (Amendmenls lo IAS (16) Properly, Plant qnd EquiPmenl'

The amendments prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant

and equipment any proceeds from selling items produced belore that asset is available for use,

i.e. proceeds while bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be

capable of operating in the manner intended by management. lnstead, an entity recognizes the

proceeds from selling such items, and the cost of producing those items, in profit or loss.

The amendments also clarify that an entity is'testing whether the asset is functioning

properly' when it assesses the technical and physical performance of the asset'

If not presented separately in the statement of income, the financial statements shall disclose

the amounts of proceeds and cost included in profit or loss that relate to items ploduced that

are not an output of the entity's ordinary activities, and which line item(s) in the staternent of
income include(s) such proceeds and cost.

-10-



FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
NoTEs TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

2. NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS, INTERPRETATION AND AMENDMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.1 Standards, interpretations issued and effective for the current year (Continued)

c Reference lo lhe Conceplual Framework (Amendments lo IFRS 3),

a

Minor amendments were made to IFRS 3 "Business Combinations" to update the references

to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting and add an exception for the

recognition of liabilities and contingent liabilities within the scope of IAS 37 Provisions,

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and IFRIC 2l Levies. The amendments also

confirm that contingent assets should not be recognised at the acquisition date

Onerous Contracts - Cosl ol Fuuilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37).

The amendments speciry that the cost of fulfilling a contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract. costs that relate directly to a contract consist of both the

incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (for example, direct labour and materials)

and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to futfilling contracts (for example,

allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment

used in fulfilling that contract, among others)

Before a separate provision for an onerous contract is established, an entity recognizes

any impairment loss that has occurred on assets used in fulfilling the contract.

Annual improvements to IFRS 2018-2020 (Amendmenls lo IFRS I,IFRS 9, IFRS
l6 and IAS 41)

. /FXS 1 Amendmenls, Firsl-time Adoption of Inlernalional Financial Reporting
Standards

The amendment provides additional relief to a subsidiary which becomes a first-
time adopter later than its parent in respect of accounting for cumulative
translation differences. As a result of the amendment, a subsidiary that uses the

exemption in IFRS I :D l6(a) may elect, in its financial statements, to measure

cumulative translation differences for all foreign operations at the carrying amount
that would be included in the parent's consolidated financial statements, based on

the parent's date of transition to IFRSs, if no adjustments were made for
consolidation procedures and for the effects of the business combination in which
the parent acquired the subsidiary. A similar election is available to an associate or
joint venture that uses the exemption in IFRS 1 :D I 6(a).

IFRS 9 Amendmenls, Financial Instruments

The amendments clarifo the fees an entity includes when it applies the '10 per

cent' in assessing whether to derecognize a financial liability, an entity includes
only fees paid or received between the entity (the borrower) and the lender,

including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the other's
behalf.

a

-11-



F.UJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P,J.S.C
NoTES To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 3I DECEMBER 2022

2. NEw AND REVISED STANDARDS, INTERPRETATION AND AMENDMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.1 Standards, int€rpretations issued and effective for the current year (Continued)

t Annuol improvements to IFRS 2018-2020 (Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IFRS
16 ond IAS 4l) (Continued)

IFRS I6 Amendmenls, Leases

The amendment to illustrative example l3 accompanying IFRS 16 removes from
the example the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements.

. IAS 41 Amendments, Agricullure

The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of IAS 41 for the

entities to exclude taxation cash flows when measuring the fair value under
IAS 41

These amendments had no material impact on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group.

2.2 Standards, interpretations and amendments in issue not yet effective and not early
adopted:

Effective date
IAS I - Amendment Classification of Liabilities as Current or

Non-current
Insurance ContractsIFRS- l7 - New

IASI-Amendment&
IFRS practice statement 2

IAS 8- Amendment
IAS l2- Amendment

1 lanuary 2023
IFRS l0 and IAS 28
Amendments Indefinite effective

date

If applicable, the Group intends to adopt these new and amended standards and

interpretations when they become effective. The management anticipates that the
adoption ofthe above standards and interpretations in future periods may have an impact
on the consolidated financial statements ofthe Group.

3. BASIS oF PREPARATION

3. I Going concern

The Group incuned loss of AED 143,847,098 for the current year compared to loss of
AED 102,738,529 in the previous year and the accumulated losses as at 3l December
2022 amounled to AED 87 ,523,797 which was offset against voluntary reserve as at

31 December 2022. The current liabilities exceeded the current assets by
AED 145,009,363. These events or conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exits
that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

1 Jantary 2023
1 lanrarv 2023

1 lantary 2023
1 lan:uarv 2023

Disclosure of Accounting Policies
Definition of Accounting Estimate
Defened Tax related to Assets and

Liabilities arising from a from a single
transaction
Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and an and its Associate or
Joint Venture

-12-



FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
NoTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 3I DECEMBER 2022

3.1 Going concern (Continued)

The major challenges during the year were the reduction in demand for cement and

clinkers and higher production cost due to rising coal and fuel prices. In response to

these challenges, the Group's management was able to increase the rates of cement in the

local markei and has stirted using altemate buming media in place of coal. The

management is also exploring to enter other markets outside UAE to maximize the

capacity utilization.

Management believes that the above actions and the feasibility of future plans by the

Board-of Directors will improve its ability to generate future profits and cash flows and

continue its operations in tire foreseeable future. Hence, the accompanying consolidated

financial statements have been prepared on a going concem basis'

Statement of compliance

The Group's consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance.with

International Financial Reporting Standards (lFRSs) as issued by the International

Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and applicable requirements of the UAE Federal

Law No. 32 of 2021on Commercial Companies.

3. BAsIs OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

3.2

3.3 Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis

except for land which has been measured on the basis ofvaluation'

3.4 Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in UAE Dirham (AED), which is

the Group's Functional Currency. The amounts in the consolidated financial statements

are rounded to the nearest UAE Dirham (AED).

3.5 Use of estimates, assumptions and judgment

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires

manigement to make judgment, estimates and assumption that affect the application of
policiis and reported amount of assets and liabilities, income and expenses, other

disclosures and disclosures of contingent liabilities.

The Group based its assumptions, judgments and estimates on parameters available when

the consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and

assumptions about future development, however, may change due to market thgnge-s or

circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group. Actual results may differ from
these estimates. Sucli changes are reflected in the consolidated financial statements when

they occur.

- 13-



FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
NoTES TO THE CONSOLIDATf,D FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 3I DECEMBER 2022

3. BAsls oF PREPARATtoN (CoNTINUED)

3.5 Use of estimales, assumptions and judgment (Continued)

Estimates, judgments and underlying assumption are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Revision to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are

revised and in any future period affected.

Estimates, assumptions and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on

management historical experience and other factors, including expectation of future

events that are believed to be reasonable under circumstance.

Estimates, assumptions and judgments with significant risk of material adjustment in the

future year mainly comprise of the following :

Provision relating to contracts

The Group reviews all its arrangements on a regular basis to identify any arrangements

where the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contracts exceed the

economic benefits expected to be received under it. The unavoidable costs under contract

reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract which is the lower of the cost of
fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfill it. The Group

estimates any such provision based on the facts and circumstances relevant to the

contracts.

Determining the lease terms

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that

create an economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a

termination option. Extension options (or periods after termination options) are only
included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not

terminated).

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group's management determines the estimated useful lives of its property, plant and

equipment for calculating depreciation. This estimate is determined after considering the

current usage of the assets compared to full utilization capabilities of the assets and

physical wear and tear. Group's management reviews the residual value and useful lives

annually.

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment

The Group reviews its property, plant and equipment to assess impairment, ifthere is an

indication of impairment. In determining whether impairment losses should be reported

in consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the Group makes judgments as to

whether there is any observable data indication that there is a reduction in the carrying

value of property, plant and equipment. Accordingly, provision for impairment is made

where there is an identified |oss event or condition which, based on previous experience,

is evidence of a reduction in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment.

- 14-



tr'UJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
NoTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

3.5 Use of estimates, assumptions and judgment (Continued)

Impairment of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. When inventories

become slow-moving or obsolete, an estimate is made of their net realizable value. For

individually significint amounts this estimation is performed on an individual basis.

Amounts which are not individually significant but which are slow moving or obsolete,

are assessed collectively and provision is made according to inventories type and degree

ofageing or obsolescence, based on historical selling prices.

Calculation of the quantity of inventory

The calculation of closing stock quantities of certain raw materials, semi-finished
products, buming media and finished goods requires the use of estimates. At the end of
Lach reporting period, management appoints a surveyor to determines the volume ofthe
inventory which is used by management in a scientific formula by reference to its
estimated density, to arrive to the closing quantity. The inventory as reflected in the

accounting records, closely approximates the actual quantities.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group's management evaluate whether there are indicators that suggest non-

financial aisets have suffered impairment in accordance with accounting policies stated

in note 4. The recoverable amount of an asset is determined based on the fair value less

cost of disposal of the specific asset impaired.

Provision for expected credit loss "ECL"

When measuring ECL the Group uses reasonable and supportable forward-looking
information, which is based on assumptions for the future movement of different

economic drivers and how these drivers will affect each other. Loss given default is an

estimate of the loss arising on defautt. It is based on the difference between the

contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, taking into

account cash flows from collateral and integral credit enhancements. Probability of
default constitutes a key input in measuring ECL. Probability of default is an estimate of
the likelihood of default over a given time horizon, the calculation of which includes

historical data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions. Refer to note 9 for the

provision for the loss allowance for the year.

3.6 Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements incorporated the consolidated financial statements of
the parent company and entity controlled by the Group. Control is achieved when :

o The Group has power over the investee.
o The Group is exposed, or has rights to variable retums from its involvement with the

investee.
o The Group has the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its retums.
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FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P,J.S,C
NoTES To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

3.6 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of controlled mentioned

above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the

Group considers all relevant facts circumstances whether it has power over an investee,

including ;

o The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee.

. Rights arising from the other contractual arrangements.
o The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

Consolidation ofa subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and

ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed during the year is included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until the date when Group

ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributable to the

owners of the Group and to the non-controlling interest even if this results in the non-

controlling interest having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of a subsidiary to bring
their accounting policies into line with the Group accounting policies.

All intragroup balances and income, equity and cash flows relating to transactions between
entities ofthe Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group ownership interests in a subsidiary that do not result in the Group
losing control over a subsidiary are accounted for as equity transactions The carrying
amounts of the Group interests and the non-conkolling interest are adjusted to reflect the

changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interest are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognized directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Group.

The details ofthe subsidiary is as follows :

Entitv

Fujairah Cement Industries PJSC FZE* 100 100

o/o oI
ownership

2022 2021
Principal activities

Country of
incorporation

Ready mixed concrete
manufacturing

* The Establishment started its operation in March 2022

-16-
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FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
NoTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

4.1 Property, plant and equiPment

The property, plant and equipment are carried at their cost/valuation less any

accumulited'dep.eciation and any accumulated impairment. Cost includes purchase cost

together with any incidental costs of acquisition.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate

asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated

with the item and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

The cost ofday to day service ofproperty and equipment is expensed as incurred'

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use in the manner intended by

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

management

Factory buildings and improvements
Factory civil structures
Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Vehicles and mobile plant
Tools and equipment

Quarry assets

5to35
5to35
2to35
2lo 4
4to7
Zto 4
6to20

No depreciation is charged on land and capital work-in-progress. The depreciation

charge for each period is recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.

The estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate

at each reporting date. An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its

reco.rrerabie amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than estimated recoverable

amount.

Gain or loss arising on disposal of any item ofproperty, plant and equipment (calculated

as the differenc. b"t*""n the net disposal proceeds, and the carrying amount of the

asset) is recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income'

Estimated use I lives
Years

Capital work-in-prugress

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative
pr.por". or for purposes not yet determined are carried at cost, less any recognized

impairment loss.-Cost includei professional fees and, for qualifoing assets, borrowing

coits capitalized in accordance with the Group's accounting policy. Such properlies_are

classifiet to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment wlten

completed and ready ior intended use. Depreciation ofthese assets, on the same basis as

othei property assets, commences when the assets zue ready for their intended use.
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FUJATRAH CEMENT INDUSTRTES P.J.S.C
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTINC POLICIES (CONTINUED)

4.2 Intangible assets

lntangible assets represents the total amounts paid towards software and is carried at

cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.

Amortization is calculated on straight line basis over a period of five years from the

date they are available for use.

4.3 Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position based on current/non-current classification. An asset is current when it is :

- Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date or

- Cash and cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a

liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when :

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least

twelve months after the reporting date.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

4.4 Leases

The Group evaluates at the beginning of the lease agreement whether the contract is a

lease agreement or includes a rental arrangement. If the contract is wholly or partially

transferring the right to control the use of a specific asset from one party to another for
a specific period of time in exchange for a specific compensation or allowance, then the

Group recognizes the right to use the assets and lease obligations with the exception of
short-term leases ofone year or less and the leases for leased assets with low value. For

these leases, the Group recognizes lease payments as an operating expense on a straight

line basis over the term of the lease, unless another systematic basis further presents the
period of time in which the economic benefits from the leased assets are amortized.

Lease obligations

Lease obligations are recognized and measured initially at the present value of lease

payments that have not been paid on the commencement date ofthe lease contract, and

those payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the contract, and if it is
not known, then the Group uses the incremental borrowing interest rate.
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F.UJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P,J.S.C
NoTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

4.4 Leases (Continued)

Lease obligations (Continued)

Unpaid lease payments include:

- Fixed lease payments less any lease incentives receivable'

- Variable leaie payments that depend on an index or rate, measured initially using the

index or rate at the start date ofthe lease.

- The amount the lessee is expected to pay the lessor when there is a residual value

guaranteed in the lease agreement
ihe price ofexercising buying options, if the lessee is reasonably certain ofexercising
the options.

- Termination fines, if the lease reflects the exercise ofthe option to terminate the lease.

The lease liability is presented as a separate component of the Group's consolidated

statement of financial Position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect

the interest on the lease obligation and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the

lease payments paid.

The Group re-measures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the

related right-of-use assets) whenever:

- The lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances

that lead to a change in ihe evaluation ofthe purchase option exercise, in which case

the lease liability ii re-measured by discounting the revised lease payments using the

revised discount rate.

- Rental payments change due to changes in an index or rate or change in expected

payments under a guarinteed residual value, in which cases the rental liabilities are re-

hiasured by discounting the a justed rental payments using an unchanged discount

rate (unless the rental payments change due to the change in the floating interest rate.

In this case, the adjusted discount rate is used.)

- The lease is amended and the lease amendment is not counted as a separate lease

contract, in which case the lease liabilities are re-measured based on the modified

lease term by discounting the modified lease payments using the modified discount

rate at the date of modification.

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets include the initiat measurement of the corresponding lease liability,
leaie payments made on or before the inception day, minus any lease incentives

receivid- and any initial direct costs subsequently measured minus accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses.
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FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
NoTEs To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TTIE

YEAR ENDED 3I DECEMBER 2022

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

4.4 Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

When the Group incurs a commitment to the costs of dismantling and removing a

leased asset, restoring the site on which it is located, or restoring the asset to the

required condition under the terms of the lease contract, the provision is recognized and

measured in accordance with IAS (37) and to the extent that the costs relate to the right-
of-use assets, the costs are included in related right-of-use assets, unless these costs are

incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of the contract term or the

uselul life ofthe specified asset.

If the lease contract transfers ownership of the underlying asset or right-of-use cost

reflects that the Group expects to exercise the purchase option, then the related use

value is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. Depreciation starts on

the date of commencement of the lease agreement.

Right-to-use assets are presented as a separate component in the consolidated statement

of financial position.

The Group applies IAS (36) to determine whether the right to use value has decreased

and calculates any impairment loss identified as described in the "property, plant and

equipment" policy.

As a practical expedient, IFRS '16 allows a lessee not to separate the non-leased

components, and instead any lease contract and associated non-lease components are

counted as a single arrangement. The Group did not use this practical expedient. For

contracts that contain a leasing component and one or more leasing or non-leasing

components, the Group allocates consideration in the contract to each leasing

component based on the independent relative price of the leasing component and the

total sum of the single price of the non-leasing components.

The Group as Lessor

Operating leases

The rental income from the operating the lease is recognized on a consistent basis and

evenly over the period ol the related contract. The initial direct costs incurred by the

entity when negotiating and preparing the contract are added to the value in which the

leased asset appears in the consolidated statement of financial position, and they are

recognized as expenses during the contract period in the same way that is adopted for
lease income. Leased assets are depreciated under operating lease contracts, based on

the same depreciation policies that the entity follows for similar assets.
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FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
NoTES To THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

4. SUMMARYOFSICNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES(CONTINUED)

4.5 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset

may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an

asset is required, the Group estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An ass€t's

recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash generating unit's (CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined

for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely

independent of those from other assets or Group's assets. When the carrying amount of
an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is

written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present

value using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of
disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. lf no such transactions can

be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are

corroborated by valuation multiples or other available fair value indicators.

4.6 Financiallnstruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and

a financial liability or equity instrument ofanother entity.

Financial assets

o Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at

amortized cost (AC), fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), and

fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). The classification of financial assets at

initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group's business model for managing them. With the exception of trade

receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the

Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group initially measures a financial

asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are

measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or fair
value through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are 'solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI)' on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is

referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its

financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines

whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the

financial assets. or both.
-2t-



FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
NoTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 3l DECEMBER 2022

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTINC POLICIES (CONTINUED)

4.6 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

. Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date, being

the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are

derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have

expired or have been transferred and the Croup has transferred substantially all the

risks and rewards ofownership.

o Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four

categories:

- Financial assets at amortized cost

- Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI) with
recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

- Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income

(OCI) with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity

instruments)

- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

As of reporting date, that the Group contracted with only the financial assets at

amortized cost.

. Financial assets at amortized cost

The Croup measures financial assets at amortized cost if both of the following
conditions are met:

The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold

financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and,

- The contractual terms ofthe financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest

(ElR) method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in profit
or loss when the asset is derecognized, modified or impaired.

The Group's financial assets at amortized cost includes trade receivables, other

receivables and cash and cash equivalents.
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FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

4.6 Financiallnstruments(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

. Impairment of Iinancial assets

The Group recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt

instrumenis not 
-held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the

difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and

all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of
the original effective interest iate. ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit

"*po.ui". 
for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial

recognition and ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that

are piossible within the neit 12-months (a l2-month ECL). For those credit exposures

for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a

loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the

exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL)'

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs.

Therefore, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognizes a loss

allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a

fro.,rision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for

iorwardJooking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

In certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when

intemal or extemal informatio; indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the

outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit

enhanceme-nts held by the Group. A financial asset is wlitten off when there is no

reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows'

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual

arrangement provision of the instrument.

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs.

Financial liabitities can be subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective

interest method, with interest 
"*pinr" 

iecognized on an effective yield basis, or at fair

value through profit or loss.

As of reporting date, that the Group contracted with only the financial liability at

amortized cost.

. Financial liabilities at amortized cost

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a

financial liability and of allocating interest expbnse over the relevant period. The

effective intereit rate is the ratJ that exactly discounts estimated future cash

payments through the expected life ofthe financial liability, or, where appropriate' a

shorter period.

The Group,s financial liabilities at amortized cost includes trade and other payables,

lease liabilities and bank bono*ing.-23_



[.UJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
NoTES To THE CONSOLIDATED F.INANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 3I DECEMBER 2022

4. SUMMARY oF StcNtFICANT AccoUNTING PoLICIES (CoNTINUED)

4.6 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

o Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's obligations
are discharged, cancelled or they expire. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition ofthe originat liability and the recognition ofa new liability. The difference
in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the

consolidated statement of financial position if there is currently enforceable legal right
to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to
realize the assets and settle liabilities simultaneously.

4.7 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value, cost is determined
using the weighted average basis. Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour and an

appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditures based on the normal
operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale.

Spare parts and others inventories cost comprises of their purchase price.

Provision is made where necessary for obsolete, slow-moving and damaged items

4.8 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of preparing consolidated statement of cash flows (Exhibit D) cash and

cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and unrestricted balances with banks which are

subject to an insignificant risk ofchange in value.

4.9 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

4.10 Trade payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to
the end ofthe financial year which are unpaid and the amounts are unsecured. Trade and

other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within
12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

4. SUMMARY OF STGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

4.11 Provisions

Provisions for tegal claims, service warranties and make good obligations are recognised

when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,

and it is probaLle that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,

and the ;nount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future

operating losses.

where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be

required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole.

A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one

item included in the same class of obligations may be small'

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the

expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.

The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects

current market assessments of the time vilue of money and the risks specific to the

liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as

interest expense.

4.12 Employees benefits

Employees' end of service benefits is calculated in accordance with U.A.E. Labour Law

requirements.

Retirement pension and social benefit scheme for the U.A.E citizens are made by the

Group in accordance with Federal Law.

4.13 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initialty at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.

Bonowin[s are subse-quently stated at amortized cost; any difference beiween proceeds

(net of tr;sactio., 
"oitr; 

and the redemption value. is recognised in the consolidated

itatement of comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings using the

effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised

as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the

facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs.

To thi extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will
be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and

amortized over the period ofthe facility to which it relates'

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement of financial position when the

obligation" specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference

betw"een the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or

transferred to anothei party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets

transferred or liabilities issumed, is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as other income or finance costs.
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F.UJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
NoTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

4. SUMMARY oF SIGNIFICANT AccoUNTING PoLIcIES (CoNTTNUED)

4.13 Borrowings (Continued)

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity issues equity
instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a
gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, which
is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability and

the fair value of the equity instruments issued. Borrowings are classified as current

liabitities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

4.14 Borrowing costs

Bonowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
quali$,ing assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such

time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income in the period which they are incurred.

4.15 Revenue from contracts with customers balances

Contract assets
A contract asset is the right to the consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to

the customer. If the Group performs by transfening the Boods or service to the customer before

the customer pays considirition or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the

eamed consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivables
Trade receivables are amount due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the

ordinary course of business. The accounting policies of financial assets in financial instruments

paragraph details the initial recognition and subsequent measurement oftrade receivables.

Contract liabililies
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the

Group has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. lf a

customer pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a

contract liibility is recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is

earlier). Contrict liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Group performs under the

contract.

4.16 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is

reduced for estimated customer returns and rebates.

Contract revenue
The Group recognize revenue from contracts with customers based on the five step

model set out in IFRS 15.
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FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
NoTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

4.16 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Co nl ract rcve n ue (Co ntin ue d)

Step 1: Identify the contract with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement

between two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out

the criteria for each ofthose rights and obligations.

Step 2: Identifi the performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation in

a contract is a promise to transfer a good or service to the customer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: Transaction price is the amount ofconsideration

to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the promised

goods and services io a iustomer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For

a contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Group will allocate the

transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the

consideration to which the Gioup expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfoing each

performance obli gation.

Step 5: Recognize revenue as and when the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

The Group recognizes revenue over time ifany one of the following criteria is met:

o The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the

Group's performance as the Group performs; or
o The Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as

the asset is created or enhanced; or
. The Group,s performance does not create an asset with an altemative use to the Group

and the entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance obligation

completed to date.

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is

recognized at the point in time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.

When the Group satisfies a performance obligation by delivering the promised goods

and services, it ireates a contract asset based on the amount of consideration eamed by

the performance. where the amount of consideration received from a customer exceeds

the amount ofrevenue recognized, this gives rise to a contract liability.

. Sale of goods

Revenue is recognized for the performance obligation when control over the

conesponding goods is transferred to the customers. The timing of revenue

,""ognition oi this performance obligation is at point in time for sale of goods when

the goods are delivered to the customers.
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FUJATRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P'J'S.C
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS F'OR THE

YEAR ENDED 3I DECEMBER 2022

4. SuMMARY oF SIcNIFICANT AccouNTING PoLICIES (CoNTINUED)

4.17 Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to UAE Dirhams at the foreign

exchange rates at the date ofthe transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date

are tranilated to UAE Dirhams at the spot foreign exchange rate ruling at that date.

The foreign cunency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference between the

amortizedcost in UAE Dirhams at the beginning of the year, adjusted for effective

interest and payments during the year, and the amortized cost in the foreign currency

translated at the spot exchange rate at the end of the year'

Non monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency

are translated to UAE Dirhams at the spot exchange rate at the date on which the fair

value is determined. Non monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in

aforeignculTencyaretranslatedusingthespotexchangeratethedateofthe
transaction.

Foreign currency differences arising on translation are generally recognized in

consolidated statement of comprehensive income'

4.18 Dividenddistribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as liability in the consolidated

financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the

Shareholders.

4.19 Value added tax

Expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount ofVAT, except :

o when vAT incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the

taxation authority, in which case, VAT is recognised as part of the cost of

acquisition ofthe asset or as part of the expense items, as applicable'

. when receivables and payables are stated with the amount of vAT included.

The net amount of vAT recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is

included as part of receivables or payables in the consolidated statement of financial

position.

4.20 Earnings Per share

Basic earnings Per share

Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing:

. The profit attributable to shareholders of the Group, excluding any costs of
servicing equity other than ordinary shares'

. by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 
- 
during the

financiat yeir, adjusted Tor bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the

year and excluding treasury shares ifany'
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FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
NoTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FTNANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 3l DECEMBER 2022

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTINC POLICIES (CONTINUED)

4.21 Contingent Iiabilities

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations depending on whether some uncertain
future events occur, or they are present obligations but payments are not probable or the

amounts cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the

consolidated fi nancial statements.
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FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 3I DECEMBER 2022

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

b) Land mentioned above of AED. 34,997,500 is stated at valuation by Land and Property

Management - Dibba Municipality - Government of Fujairah and the difference

amouiting to AED. 34,747,500, was credited to revaluation reserve (Exhibit A)'

c) Part of the factory buildings and improvements, factory civil structures and plant and

machinery are conitructed/erected on leased land obtained from the Dibba Municipality -
Government of Fujairah.

d) There is a registered chattel mortgage (being executed) over the waste Heat Recovery

based captive-power plant expansion project included in plant and machinery mentioned

above and an issignment of insuranci policy covering the project in favour of the bank

against bank borrowings (Note l7).

e)lnsurancepolicycoveringmovableassetsisassignedinfavorofabankagainstbank
borrowings (Note l7).

f) commercial mortgage over thermal power plant included in plant and machinery

mentioned abore, 
-assignment of insurance policies covering the cement factory and

ih"rral po*e, plant anJassignment of leasehold rights over the land on which the thermal

power piant is located are provided as securities against bank borrowings (Note l7).

g) There is a registered mortgage and assignment of insurance policy over specific machinery

upgraded N;te l7) included in plant and machinery mentioned above'

h)Costoffullydepreciatedproperty,plantandequipmext.thatwasstillinuse,attheendof
the reporting p"iiod urornt.d to AED. 354,785,226 (2021 : AED 353,478'614)'

6. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

The movement ofthe right-of-use assets are summarized as follows :

2022
AED

Cost :

At I January
Additions during the year

r38,897,679
3r5,953

2021
AED

132,403,222
6,494,457

Balance at 31 December

Accumulatcd Depreciation :

At I January
Charged for the year

Balance at 3l December

Net book Value at 3l December - Exhibit A

139,213,632 138,897,679

29,252,204
10,1E2,875

18,978,069
10,274,t35

39,435,079 29,252,204

-3 l-
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FUJAIRAH CEM ENT INDUSTRIES P.J,S.C
NoTEs To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 3I DECEMBER 2022

7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

This item consists ofthe following :

Cost :

At I January 2021

At 3l Decemb€r 2021

Transfer from capital work-in-progress

Balance at 3l December 2022

Accumulated amortization :

At I January 2021

Charged for the year

At 3l December 2021

Charged for the year

Balance at 3l December 2022

Net book Value :

At 3l D€cember 2022 - Exhibit A

At 3l December 2021 - Exhibit A

2022
AED

16,056,468
56,671,485
3,383,164

126,971,880

(26,816,60s)

Software
AED

249,517

249,517

38,79s

38,795

210,722

2021
AED

t7,006,665
66,17 s,823

3,108,902

128,031,829
(20,702,1t3)

8 INVENTORIES

a) This item consists ofthe following :

Raw materials
Semi-finished products
Finished products

Total

Spare pafts

Allowance for slorv-moving spare parts - Note 8(b)

Net

Buming media

Bags and packing material

Total

Goods-in-transit

Total - Exhibit A

7 6,rrr,,l17 86,29t,390

100,155,275 107,329,716

75,099,758

73sJ36
73,2t2,154

722,634

75,835,094 73,934,788

77,681 19,488,804

252,179,167 287,044,698

Insurance policy over inventories is assigned against bank borrowings (Note 17).
-12-



FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C
NoTEs To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 3l DECEMBER 2022

INvENToRIES (CoNTINUED)

b) The movement in allowance for slow-moving spare parts during the year are as follows

2022 2021

8

AED

20,702,113
6,114,,492

AED

20,702,13Balance at I January
Additions during the year

Balance at 3l December - Note 8(a)

Trade receivables
Provision for impairment loss oftrade receivables

- Note 9(c)

Net amount - Exhibit A

Coverage :

Trade receivables against BG & L/C's
Trade receivables

Total

26,816,605 20,702,1t3

c) Inventories have been reduced by AED. 18,215,313 (2021 : AED. 5,568,397) as a result

ofthe write-down to net realizable value. This write-down was recognized as expenses

(Exhibit B).

9. TRADE RECEIVABLES

a) This item consists of the following :

2022 2021
AED

r r3,695,970

(52,712,662)

AED

135,942,404

(4 r,638,030)

60,983,308 94,304,374

31,949,545
81,746,425

45,713,677
90,228,727

113,695,970 135,942,404

b) Trade receivables include :

o 7 customers (2021 : AED.5 customers) representing 78o/o (2021 : 78%) of the trade

receivables.
. AED. 65.4 Million (2021 : AED. 63.7 Million) which is past due of this

AED.3.6 Million (2021 : AED.4.8 Million) is secured.

. Trade receivables are assigned against bank borrowings (Note l7).

-JJ-



FUJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J.S.C

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 3I DECEMBER 2022

TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

c) The details of movement in provision for impairment loss of trade receivables

during the year are as follows : 
2022 2021
AED AED

9

Balance at I January
Additions to provision
Written off

Balance at 3l December - Note 9(a)

Secured tradc receivablcs sgainst bank
guarantees and letaers of credi(
Unsccured trade receivables

52,712,,662 41,638,030

4r,63E,030
11,212,052

(137,420)

26,552,172
15,095,491

(e,633)

The average credit period for the trade receivables is ll2 days (2021 :'l t9 day$'

No interesi is charged on trade receivables in the normal course of business'

The Group always measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at an amount

equal to lifetime ECL. The expected credit losses on trade receivables are estimated

using a provision matrix by ,ef"r"nce to past default experience of the debtor and an

anatlsis ofthe debtor's cuirent financial position, adjusted for faclors that are specific

to the customers including bank guarantees and letters of credit provided, general

economic conditions ofthe industry in which the debtors operate and an assessment of
both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.

Therehasbeennochangeintheestimationtechniquesorsignificantassumptions
made during the current reporting period.

The Group writes-off a trade receivable when there is information indicating that the

debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

The following table details the risk profile of trade receivables based on the croup's

provision malrix. As the Group's historical credit loss experience does not show

significantly different loss patteins for different customer segments, the provision for

lois allowance based on past due status is not further distinguished between the

Group's different customer base.

d) The details of risk profile and age wise analysis of trade receivables are as follows :

2022

Gross

trade receivables
AED

31,949,545

Expected

Credit loss

AED

Expected

Credit loss rate

81,116,425 52,112,662

113,695,9?0 52,112,662Total - Note 9(a & c)

-34-
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f,.UJAIRAH CEMENT INDUSTRIES P.J'S.C
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTTNUED)

d) The details of risk profile and age wise analysis of trade receivables are as follows :

(continued) 
2ozl

Gross Expected Expected

trade receivables redit loss Credit Ioss rate

%AED

45,713,6',7',|

90,228,'127

AED

Secured trade receivables against bank

guarantees and letters of credit
Unsecured trade receivables

Total - Note 9(a & c)

Not prst
dle
AED

4l,638,030

135,942,404 4l,638,030

Less than 180
davs
AED

180 -360
davs

AED

More than
360 davs

AED

460/o

Total
AED

96,661,418
18,439,454
20,841,532

3l December 2022

3l December 2021

10. ADVANCES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

This item consists of the following :

Prepayments
Advances to suppliers
Other receivables

'72,243,625 14,350,996 5,102,766 44,245,017 135,942'404

3,489,716 3,518,263 t 13,695,970

2022 2021
AED AED

Geographical Analysis

The geographical analysis oftrade receivables are as follows

Within U.A.E
Outside U.A.E - G.CC
Other countries

Total 113,695,970 135,942,404

92,318,637
20,166,220

611,113

2022
AED

858,554
1,889,916
5,417,960

2021

AED

683,781
2,228,715
5,661 ,850

8,166,430Total - Exhibit A
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11. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

This item consists of the following :

Cash in hand
Bank balances - Current accounts

Total-ExhibitA&D

12. SHARE CAPITAL

This item consists of the following :

Authorized share capital is AED. 355,865,320 ordinary
share of AED. I each fully paid - Exhibit A & C

I3. STATUTORY RESERVE

This item consists ofthe following

2022 2021
AED AED

355,865,320 355,865,320

2022
AED

tt7,4t5
1,206,139

1,323,554

2022
AED

161.,750,412

2021
AED

1 14,651
608,455

723,106

2021
AED

161,750,412Balance at I January

Balance at 31 December - Exhibit A & C 161,750,412 161,750,412

In accordance with UAE Federal Law No. 32 of 2021, an amount equal to l0% (2021 :

10%o in accordance with UAE Federal Law No. 2 of 2015 and its amendments) of the

profit of each year is to be appropriated to a statutory reserve. Transfer may be

discontinued when the reserve reaches 50% of the paid-up capital. This reserve is not

available for distribution except in circumstances stipulated by the law.

14. VOLUNTARY RESERVE

a) The detaits of movement in voluntary reserve during the year are as follows :

2022 2021
AED AED

222,536,002Balance at 1 January
Offsetting of accumulated losses - Note 14(c)

Balance at 31 December - Exhibit A & C 135,012,205 222,536,002

222,536,002
(87,523,797)

b) In prior years, 10o% of the profits was appropriated to a voluntary reserve. As per

Article 59 of the Articles of Association of the Company, the voluntary reserve may

be used according to a resolution of the Board of Directors in the aspects that achieve

the interests of the Company.

c) The Board of Directors resolved to offset the losses and/or the accumulated losses of
the Company against the voluntary reserve as at 3 1 December 2022 and thereafter in
the future in the event that the Company is reporting losses.
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YEAR ENDED 3I DECEMBER 2022

I5. EMPLoYEES END OF SERVICE BENEFITS

The details ofmovement in this item during the year are as follows :

2022
AED

t4,29E,,rtr
1,379,860

(2,596,650)

2021
AED

14,341,137
I,t 14,706

(t,ts7,732)

Balance at 3l December - Exhibit A 13,081,321 14,298,11 I

I6. LEASE LIABILITIES

Lease liabilities represent the long term lease plots of land from Covernment of Fujairah

The details of movements in this item during the year are as follows :

2022 2021
AED AED

Balance at I January
Current service cost
Settlements during the year

Balance at I January
Additions during the year

Finance cost on lease liabilities
Payments during the year

Balance at 3l December

Non-Current -Exhibit A
Current -Exhibit A

Total

17. BANK BoRRowINCS

a) Bank-term borrowings

i) This item consists of the following

Balance at I January
Add: Received during the year
Less: Repaid during the year

Balance at 3l December

Non-Current portion - Note l7(c)(i)
Current portion - Note l7(c)(ii)

Total- Note l7(a)(ii)

141,554,939 143,242,333

143,242,333
315,953

4,137,363
(6,140,710)

138,403,752
6,494,457
4,458,969

(6,114,845)

141,s54,939 143,242,333

2022 2021
AEDAED

253,585,059
44,009,878

(27,7s6,775)

342,850,828

(89,265,769)

269,838,162 253,585,059

112,705,265
28,849,674

130,202,s49
13,039,784

227,643,871
25,941,188

234,03E,62r
3s,799,541
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NoTEs TO THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

17. BANK BoRRowINGS (CONTINUED)

a) Bank-term borrowings (Continued)

ii) Break-up ofbank{erm borrowings are as follows :

Loan Maturi date 2022 2021

AED

48,248,494
13,187,698
92,807,679
74,400,000
6,194,291

35,000,000

269,838,162 253,585,059

Term loan I
Term loan 2
Term loan 3

Term loan 4
Term loan 5

Term loan 6

Total - Note 17(a)(i)

January 2030
December 2028
November 2026
December 2028
November 2023
December 2025

AED

53,240,681
t4,836,699

101,807 ,679
83,700,000

Term loan I
During 2017, the Group entered into an Islamic financing arrangement (Ijarah) from a
bank operating in the United Arab Emirates for AED. 114,445,987 to settle the existing
term loan. During November 2017, the outstanding balance of AED. 101,240,681 were

rescheduled to be repaid in 22 equal quarterly installments of AED. 3,000,000 each

commenced in January 2018 and ending in April 2021 and the remaining amount of
AED. 35,240,681 to be settled in July 2023. During 2021, the existing Ijarah balance has

been refinanced by the same bank to be repaid in 31 equal quarterly installments of
AED. 1,664,063 commencing from April 2022 and the remaining amount of
AED.1,654,728 to be settled in January 2030.

Term lorn 2

During 2017, the Group entered into an Islamic financing arrangement (Mudaraba) from
a bank operating in the United Arab Emirates for AED. 30,000,000 of which

AED. 21,893,199 was drawn down, to finance the upgrade of the raw mill/slag grinding
project. Out of the outstanding amount of AED. 19,407,168, the Group paid

epb. S+,:St in January 2020 and the balance is scheduled to be repaid in 27 eqlual

qua(erly installments of AED. 716,769 each commencing in April 2020 ail ending in
August 2026. In 30 June 2021, the outstanding amount of AED. 15,768,929 is

resCheduled to be repaid in 30 quarterly installments commencing from July 2021 and

ending December 2028.

Term loan 3

During 2017, the Group was sanctioned this loan from a bank operating in the

United Arab Emirates for a maximum amount of AED. 209,680,000 of which
AED.209,607,679 was drawn down, to refinance the existing liabilities with other banks.

Repayment of this loan is in 26 equal quarterly installments of AED. 7,700,000 each

commenced in May 2018 and ending in August 2024 and the remaining amount of
AED. 9,407 ,6'].9 to be settled in November 2024. \n September 2021, the outstanding

amount of AED. 101,807,679 is rescheduled to be repaid in 20 quarterly installments

commencing from February 2022 and ending in November 2026. ln November 2022' the

outstanding amount of AED 94,307,679 is rescheduled to be repaid in 17 quarterly

installment commencing from November 2022 md ending in November 2026.
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YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

I7. BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

a) Bank-term borrowings (Continued)

ii) Break-up of bank-term borrowings are as follows : (Continued)

The Installments details are below :

- I installment of AED. 1,500,000
- 4 installments of AED. 2,000,000
- 3 installments of AED. 3,500,000
- I installment of AED. 6,000,000
- 3 installments of AED. 6,500,000
- 1 installment of AED. 14,000,000
- 3 installments of AED. 8,703,000
- 1 installment of AED. 8,698,679

Term loan 4

2028.

The installment details are as below :

2 installments of AED. 2,000,000
I installment of AED. 3,300,000
8 installments of AED. 2,325,000
20 installments of AED. 3,255,000

The installment details are as bellow :

- 4 installments of AED. 1 ,000,000
- 4 installment of AED. 2,500,000
- 3 installments of AED. 5,000,000
- I installment of AED. 6,000,000

During 2019, the Group was sanctioned and entered into an Islamic financing

arrang;ment (Mudaraba) from a bank operating in United Arab Emirates for
AED. 100,000,000 to settle existing liabilities with other banks. The loan is repayable in
28 quarterly installments, commencing in March 2020 and ending in December 2026.

In June 2021, the outstanding amount of AED. 91,000,000 is rescheduled to be repaid

in 3 1 quarterly installments commencing from June 2021 and ending in December

Term loan 5

During 2022, the Group has entered into a loan agreement from a bank operating in the

UniteJ Arab Emiratei for an amount of AED. 9,009,878 to settle the existing
outstanding overdraft facility with the same bank. The loan is repayable in 16 equal

monthly installments commencing from August 2022 and ending in November 2023.

Term loan 6

During the year 2022, the Group was sanctioned and entered into a loan agreement from

a bank operating in the United Arab Emirates for an amount of AED. 35,000,000 to

settle the existing short term loan and trust receipts with the same bank. The loan is
repayable in 12 quarterly installments commencing from March 2023 and ending in
December 2025.
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I7. BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

b) Other bank borrowings

This item consist of the following :

Trust receipts
Short term loans
Overdrafts

Total - Note 17 (cxii)

c) Details of bank-term borrowings are as follows

i) Non-current portion

This item consist of the following:

In the second year

In the third to fifth year

After five year

Total - Exhibit A

ii) Current portion

This item consist of the following :

Bank-term borrowings - Note l7(a)(i)
Other bank borrowings - Note l7(b)

Total - Exhibit A

Total Bank borrowings

2022 2021
AED

152,244,403
110,000,000
31,919,182

294,163,585 279,787,130

AED

|2,403,242
135,000,000
32,3 83,888

z02t
AED

27,605,250
147,760,429
52,278,t92

2021
AED

25,941,188
279,787,130

305,728,318

2022
AED

48,484.,250
r55,260,,429
30,293,942

234,038,621 227,643,871

2022
AEI)

35,799,541
294,163,585

329,963,126

564,001,747 533,372,189

iii) Bank borrowings are secured by:

o Registered charge over Thermal Power Plant (including machinery).

. Registered chattel mortgage (to be executed) over the Waste Heat Recovery

based captive power plant expansion project

o Assignment of insurance policy for AED. 437.4 million covering factory on a

pari passu basis.
. Assignment of insurance policy for AED. 236.9 million covering the Thermal

Power Plant on a Pari Passu basis.

. Assignment of insurance policy for AED. 124.4 million covering the Waste

Heat Recovery based captive power plant expansion project'

o Assignment of insurance policies covering moveable assets on pari passu basis
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17. BANK BORROwTNcS (coNTINUED)

c) Details of bank-term borrowings are as follows : (Continued)

iii) Bank borrowings are secured by: (Continued)

o Assignment of leasehold rights (between the Company & Dibba Municipality)
over the land on which the Thermal Power Plant is located.

. Assignment of insurance policy over inventories on pari passu basis.

o General assignments oftrade receivables in favor ofthe bank.

o Registered mortgage and assignment of insurance policy over specific

machinery upgraded.
. Promissory note.

I8. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

This items consists of the following
2022 2021

Trade payables
Dividends payable
Advanced received from customers
Accrued expenses

Accrued interest PaYables
Others

Total

Non-Current - Exhibit A
Current - Exhibit A

Total

IILYJ:
29,,97r,846

r08,849,022

138,820,868 147,782,950

AED

r25,639ir5
3,944,9E3

711,,703
4,94E,265
2,811,657

764,945

AED

127,621,216
3,971,870

28s,699
13,t64,297
2,419,451

320,417

147,782,950

15,270,312
t32,512,638

I9. BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

In the normal course of business, the Group enters into various transactions with related

parties. Related parties represent major shareholders, directors and key management personnel

of the Group and entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by such

parties. The prices and terms ofthese transactions are agreed with the Group's management.

o At the statement of consolidated financial position date, balances of related parties are as

follows: 
2022 zo2r

Balances due from related parties
(included in trade receivables)

Balances due to related Parties
(included in trade and other payables)

AED

1,820,s32

242,432

AED

1,104,667

84,876
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19. BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)

. The following are the details of significant related party transactions :

2022
AED

3,,681,377
118,664
67r,336

Sales
Purchases/service contracts
Construction of property, plant and equipment

2021
AED

2,503,376
t,166,490

633,950

o The remuneration, salaries and other benefits ofkey management staff during the year

are as follows :

2022
AED

key management staff salaries and other related benefits 3,855,995

20. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value measurement assumes that the asset or liability is exchanged in an orderly

transaction between market participants to sell the assets or transfer the liability at the

measurement date under cunent market conditions.

The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the

liability takes place either :

o In the principal market for the asset or liability; or
o In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or

liability.

The Group must have access to the principal (or most advantageous) market at the

measurement date.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market

participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market

participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market

participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and

test use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

2021
AED

3,183,488
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20. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments comprise financial assets and financial liabilities.

Financial assets consist of cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables.

Financial liabilities consist of trade and other payables, lease liabilities and bank

borrowings.

Fair value offinancial instruntents carried al anrcrlized cosl

Management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial

liabilities recognised at amortized cost in the consolidated financial statements

approximate their fair values.

2I . RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk is inherited in the Group's activities but it is managed through a process of
ongoing identification, measurement and nronitoring, subject to risk limits and other

controls. Operational risks are an inevitable consequence of being in the business.

The Group is exposed to a valiety of financial risks included : capital risk, market risk
(foreign currency risk and interest rate risk) credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group seeks to minimize rhe effects of these risks through internal reports which

analyze the risk to achieve its risk management function and monitor risks and reviews

policies implemented to mitigate risk exposures.

2l . I Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to saleguard the Croup's ability to

continue is a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for

other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Croup may adjust the

amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new

shares or sell assets.

2l .2 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instruments

will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, such as foreign currency risk and

interest rate risk. The objective of market risk managerrent is to manage and control
market risk exposure within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return on risk.

a) Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because ofchanges in foreign exchange rate.

The Group's activities are not exposed to the financial risks of changes in foreign

currency exchange rates because substantially all the financial assets and liabilities
are denominated in United Arab Emirates Dirhams (AED) or US Dollars to which
the AED is pegged.
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YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued)

b) Inlercst rute risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk resultant from its borrowings. The risk is
managed by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating interest rates

balance at the start ofthe financial year.

Details of financial assets and liabilities exposed to interest rate risk as at

3l December 2022 are as follows :

Effective interesl mte

Bank loans

2022

2.757. p,. + J monlhs EIBOR -
IRS.xeculed rt 2.007n p.r (Iired) +
flotr1ing on 3 months EIBOR with r
slrikc 1,75Y. p.r
2.5'lo p.a + 3 months EIBOR -
IRS executed .t 3.457o p.. +
to cover EIBOR

J months + 2.570 p.a f DIBOR
I monlh + 1.t7. p,a + EIBOR

I month EIBOR + 1.757' P.a
5.5Yo ao 1 .5Y" p.a

I month EIBOR + 1,75o/" to 2.50oh p.r
I months EIBOR + 37. p.,

I tllonah EIBOR + 1.75"/" 1o2.30"/" p,a

3 months EIBOR + 37. p.x

I monlhs EIBOR + 1.757. p.a

202t

3% p.a + I months EIBOR
IRS cxeculed al J.40% p.a +
to cover EIBOR

2.5% p.a + 3 months EIBOR -
IRS cxecuted at 3.7070 p.a +
to covcr EIBOR

3 months + 2.25% lo 2.5% p.a + EIBOR

I monrh EIBOR + I 75% p.a

5.sYo Lol|og.a

I month EIBOR + l.'75Yo to2.50Y.p.a
I months EIBOR + 1.5% pa

I month EIBOR + 1.75' to730Y.p.a
3 monlhs EIBOR + 2% p.a

9 monrhs EIBOR + I ?5% p.a

Short-lerm loans

Overdrafts

Trust receipls

21.3 Credit risk

credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group, if a customer or counterparty to a

financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from

cash flows from financial assets recorded at amortized cost such as cash and cash

equivalents and trade receivables and due from related parties.

The Group trade with recognized, creditworthy parties. The Group's policy that all

customers arc analyzed for creditworthiness on credit terms and are subject to monitor

the receivable balances of customers on an ongoing basis, that receivable balances are

the maximum exposure to credit risk relating to trade receivables and due frorn related

parties.

The Group applies IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure expected credit loss (ECL)

by grouping all financial assets based on shared credit risk characteristics and days past

due.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of that business transaction

and the corresponding historical credit loss experienced within this period.

The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and future information on macro

economic factors affecting the abilities of the customers to settle their receivable

balances.
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21. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTTNUED)

21 .3 Credit risk (Continued)

With respect to credit risk arising from other financial assets such as cash and cash

equivalents including deposits arising from default of counter party to limit that credit
risk, the Group's cash is placed with banks of repute. Management is confident that it
does not result in any credit risk to the Group as the banks are major banks operating in
UAE.

21.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting

obligations associated with its financial liabilities at maturity date. The Group monitors
its risk to shortage of funds using a cash flow model. This tool considers the maturity
of financial assets and projected cash flows from operation and capital projects.

The Group objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and

flexibility through the use of bank borrowings.

The details of maturity dates of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities are

as follows :

As at 3l December 2022 t
Less than

thr€e months
From 3 months

to one year

AED
l-5 vcars

AED

Abov€
5 Years

AED
Total
AED

67,124,822

FinancialAssets
Cssh and cash equivalents
Trade receivables
Other r€c€ivable

Toaal

Finencirl Lisbilities
Bank borrowings
Trode and other poyables
Lease liabilities

Totsl

As at 3l December 2021 :

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables
Other receivable

Total

FinancialLiabilities
Bank borrowings
Trade and other payables
Lcase liabilities

AED

t,323,554
2A,291,072

299
32,692,236
5,411,661

29,614,925 38,109,E97

t,323,554
60,983,308
5,417,960

210,256,475
2,453,577

t65.430

I19,?06,65t
105,683,741
28,684,214

20!,744,679
29,911,847
63,763,484

l-5 vears

AED

30,293,942 564,001,747
t3t,109,165
t41,554,93948,941,781

212,875,482 254,074,636 297,480,010 79,235,123 843,665,851

Less than
threc months

AED

From 3 months
to one ear

AED

Above
5 vears

AED

Total

AED

'723,106

56,925,540

'723,106

94.304,374
5,661,850

100,689,330

17,378,834
5,661,850

51,648,646 43,040,684

148,E46,595 156,881,723
t32,226,939

13,039,784

t7 5.365,6',t9
15,2',70,312
60,294,530

52,218,192

69,908,019

122,t86,21t

533,312,189
t4't,497,251
t43,242,333

148.846,595 302,148,446 250,930,521Total
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YEAR ENDED 3I DECEMBER 2022

22. REVENUE

This items consists of the following

Revenue recognized at poinl in lime
Sales:
within UAE
Outside UAE-GCC
Other countries

Total - Exhibit B

23. SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

This item consists of the following:

Transportation expenses

Export expenses
Salaries and related benefits
Vehicle expenses
Business promotion
Toll fees and charges
Others

Total - Exhibit B

374,577,222 419,977,908

2022
AED

144,500,314
61,833,25s

168,243,653

2022
AED

2021
AED

I I 1,857,489
67,362,t64

240,758,255

2021
AED

7,35E,038
2,764,128
1,557,417

2,447
5,000

199,537
217,372

24,821,t37
26,880,697

t.6t7,761
26,150
10,000
1"' <1'l

149,278

12,103,939 53,577,550

24. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

a) This item consists of the following :

2022

Salaries and related benefits
Insurance
Legal, visa, professional and related expenses

SociaI contributions - Note 24(b)
Short-term lease expenses
utilities
Telephone and communication
Travelling and entertainment
Repairs and maintenance
Medical expenses
Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Others

Total - Exhibit B 12,t53,679 14,279,639

b) Social contributions mentioned above compromise AED. Nil (2021

AED. 1,000,000) paid to Fujairah Foundation lor regions development

A8D.82,865 (2021 : AED.21,602) to the recognized institutions.
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6,384,999
359,388

1,837,679
82,865

636,222
381,262
364,609

53,950
260,057

1,449,361
128,494
214,793

202t
AED

6,826,739
510,765

1,890,340
1,021,602

716,406
'to1 '101

363,174
26,918

177,| 5

I,265,906
785,102
397,780

and
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25. FACToRY CosTs DURING STOPPAGE

Factory costs during stoppage of AED. 9,460,660 (Exhibit B) represent the unallocated
fixed production overheads incurred when the factory was shut down completely
temporarily during December 2022.

26. OTHER INCoME

This items consists of the following
2022 2021
AED AED

Foreign exchange income
Insurance claim income
Sale of scrap
Miscellaneous income

Total - Exhibit B

27. BASIC LoSS PER SHARE

This items consists of the following

501,063
687,170

30,600

2,866,714
417,715

|,203,024

4,054,947 1,65 I ,339

2022 2021

Loss for the year (AED)
Weighted average number of shares (Share)

Basic loss per share (AED) - Exhibit B

(r43,847,098)
355,865,320

(102,738,s29)
3 5 5,86s,320

(0.404) (0.28e)

28. CoNTINGENT LIABILITIES/COMMITMENTS

i) Contingenl liabilities
Contingent liabilities of the Group as at the consolidated statement of financial
position date amounted to AED. Nil (2021: AED. 3,897,143) representing letters of
credit.

ii) Commitmenls
Commitments of the Group as at the consolidated statement of financial position date
are as follows :

2022 2021
AED AED

Commitments for the purchase of property,
plant and equipment 497,817 3,269,652

29. COMPARATIVEFIGURES

Certain comparatives have been reclassified to comply with those of current year
presentation.
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